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Confidential & Without Prejudice 

Dear Dan,

We act for Nadhim Zahawi. We have been following your blog in relation to our client’s tax affairs and have serious concerns
about your latest direct allegation of dishonesty against our client in relation to our client’s explanation of his father’s interest in
YouGov through Balshore Investments.

Our client recognises that, as Chancellor and an MP, he is accountable to the public and it is right that he be asked questions
relating to the use of offshore companies. He also recognises that you are absolutely entitled to raise the questions that you have
done about his tax affairs, especially given your expert status. Until today, you have mainly done so in a balanced and fair way,
even if our client does not agree with some of your allegations and assumptions. 

However, our client considers that you overstepped the mark today by accusing him of lying to the media and the public in
explaining the contribution of his father to YouGov.

Your allegation is made in relation to our client’s explanation of the original shareholding of Balshore Investments in YouGov. You
have relied on comments attributed to YouGov by The Times today to support your view that our client was lying about the extent
of involvement of our client’s father in the very early days of YouGov when it was set up in 2000.

If your view is that our client’s father did not add sufficient value to YouGov to justify being granted founder shares in YouGov,
such a view must surely be based on a reasonable factual understanding of what was happening back in 2000. 

You clearly have very little knowledge of how YouGov came into being. In fact, there are very few people who would remember
the very significant contribution made by our client’s father in setting up YouGov at the very beginning and developing its
business plan with our client and the other founders. They also would not know about the financial and other support that our
client’s father provided to our client at a time when our client had just given up a full time job to focus on the project. Without this
support, our client would not have been able to pursue this venture.

You will note that Peter Kellner (one of the founders) and Joe Twyman (one of the very first employees) have publicly noted their
recollection of the early involvement of our client’s father, which contradicts your interpretation of what YouGov said in its
corporate statement. This should at least sound a note of caution that you are not in possession of all the facts.

You have also omitted to reference that our client’s father did pay £7,000 for his second tranche of shares. We acknowledge that
this may have been discounted but our client was not lying when he said that his father made a capital contribution to YouGov.

You certainly do not have the requisite factual knowledge to say with certainty why our client’s father decided to accept the
YouGov shares through his existing investment company Balshore Investments. You can only speculate. Any allegation that our
client has evaded or avoided tax is strongly rejected.

I have marked this email without prejudice because it is a confidential and genuine attempt to resolve a dispute with you before
further damage is caused. Our client wants to give you the opportunity to retract your allegation of lies in relation to our client.
That would not of course stop you from raising questions based on facts as you see them. 

You have said that you will “not accept” without prejudice correspondence. It is up to you whether you respond to this email but
you are not entitled to publish it or refer to it other than for the purposes of seeking legal advice. That would be a serious matter
as you know. We recommend that you seek advice from libel lawyer if you have not done already.

Should you not retract your allegation of lies today, we will write to you more fully on an open basis on Monday.

In the meantime, our client reserves all of his rights, including to object to other false allegations that you have made.

I am available to discuss if you change your mind on a having a phone call. That could well save time and expense on both
sides.

Yours sincerely

07
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Please consider the environment before printing this email. 

Osborne Clarke LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with registered number OC397443. Its
registered office is at One London Wall, London, EC2Y 5EB. It is authorised and regulated in the UK by the Solicitors Regulation
Authority (SRA) and is registered as a recognised body with SRA number 619990. More information about Osborne Clarke LLP
can be found on our website here. The term ‘partner’ refers to a member of Osborne Clarke LLP. A list of members of Osborne
Clarke LLP and their professional qualifications is available for inspection at the registered office. Any advice given by any
individual member, employee, or consultant is the responsibility of Osborne Clarke LLP and not the individual. Osborne Clarke
LLP is part of an international legal practice. 

This email is confidential and may also be privileged. It is intended for the use of the addressee only, except where the email
states it can be disclosed. Any dissemination, distribution, copying or use of this communication without prior permission of the
addressee is strictly prohibited. If you receive this email in error, please accept our apology and delete it. Email communications
may be monitored by us, as permitted by applicable law and regulations. We believe, but do not warrant, that this email and any
attachments are virus free, but please be careful as emails do not always originate from the source they purport to be from. We
do not accept any liability for losses that result from malicious correspondence, or that you sustain as a result of software viruses.
Attempts at bank account and invoice fraud against law firms and their clients are everywhere. Please note that we rarely, if ever,
change our bank details. 

If we ever needed to we would never communicate that change by email and we would never do it at the same time as asking
you to send funds or attaching an invoice for payment. Please be vigilant. If you receive an email that purports to be from
Osborne Clarke LLP, but appears suspicious, please let us know immediately. We recommend that you do not act on or reply to
the relevant email before having checked with us first. We would always recommend that you speak with us first before
transferring any money. Unless otherwise expressly stated in writing Osborne Clarke LLP is not acting as our client's agent nor
are we authorised by our client to enter into any contract on their behalf. 
Any confirmation contained in this email (or in any other form of communication) that any contractual terms or the content of any
document are settled, confirmed or agreed (or other language to the same or equivalent effect) is therefore made expressly
subject to contract. The use of any signature including, without limitation, an auto-signature on any emails from Osborne Clarke
LLP does not constitute an offer or acceptance of contract. 

We've updated our Privacy & Confidentiality Policy to reflect our continuing use of cloud based technology solutions.
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